
STILLWATER TOWN BOARD MEETING 
August 22, 2024                    Township Hall - *Hybrid                       7:00 P.M. 

 
PRESENT:   Chairperson Supervisor Tim Sinclair, Alan Robbins-Fenger, Robert Geisen 

and Jim Riehle. Clerk Barbara Riehle, CSO Mark Caroon, Maintenance 
Manager Rick Jacobson, Deputy Clerk Jennifer Maes, Attorney Jack 

Brooksbank, Engineer Michael Nielson, Treasurer Marsha Olson, Graduate 
Planner CJ Sycks were also present. Supervisor Sheila-Marie Untiedt was 

absent. 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

1. AGENDA –M/S/P Geisen/Robbins-Fenger moved to adopt the amended agenda 
edits as follows to: ADD: 

Chairperson: 1. Supervisor Sinclair will chair the meeting since Supervisor 

Untiedt is absent.   
Planner/New:  1. Washington County Planning Advisory Commission- Public 

Hearing details on AOP. 
Clerk: 1. Joint Workshop 

 
(4 ayes) 

 
2.  MINUTES –  

M/S/P Robbins-Fenger/Riehle moved to approve the 07/11/24 Board meeting minutes 
as written. (4 ayes) 

 
3. ATTORNEY – No report. Attorney Jack Brooksbank was present and available for 

discussions later in the meeting. 
 

4. ENGINEER – Engineer Michael Nielson was present. 

 a. Braun Intertec Mapping – Engineer Nielson noted that Braun Intertec has begun 
the pavement management ratings. Mr. Nielson hopes to have the information back 

next month so that can be used in determining next year’s project steps. 
 

 b. Damage Concerns - Engineer Nielson drove through the township (105th St N, 
107th St N, and 108th St N) for final inspection on the recent Overlay completed project 

work and noted a utility company is drilling too close to the roadway. He noted that a 
conduit is poking out and is touching bituminous as there is to be 30’ from centerline. 

Engineer Nielson will be contacting the utility company and asking for repair of the 
damage. In addition, he noted that the Comcast permit is in review. 

 
Supervisor Geisen noted that a gas pipeline was hit, shutting down its use for a day. In 

addition, cones have been placed on Norell indicating they will begin work soon in that 
location. 

 

CSO Caroon noted that the locate company has indicated that there are many things in 
our ditches which then pushes the line. 

 



Stillwater Town Board Mtg. – 082224   Page 2 

 c. Whispering Pines – The developer is working on getting their submittal complete 
for their Final Plat. 

 
 d. 119th and Otter Ave N – Engineer Nielson noted that the homeowner has a storm 

sewer pipe that is collapsing, with holes larger than a basketball. Mr. Nielson will check 
with Miller to see if it can be repaired, or he will look into the becoming a replacement 

project. 
 

 e. Berm on Hwy 95/105th – Engineer Nielson noted that he checked with MnDOT to 
be sure it was not in the ROW, it is not. He also noted that they will need a grading 

permit and will follow up on that. 
 

 f.  McDonald ROW for 103rd – Engineer Nielson noted in his memo dated August 8, 
2024, that he is not in favor of making private improvements in a public ROW. He noted 

that there are several legal issues with allowing this and should be addressed by the 

Town Attorney. 
 

Mr. Brad McDonald was present, and it was noted that he withdrew his request on July 
31, 2024, by email. Mr. McDonald wanted to bring awareness that other local 

jurisdictions have allowed a landowner to route a driveway through a township ROW. He 
noted that more trees will be removed than was intended. In addition, if the road were 

to be extended through, he noted that all the properties that adjoin the ROW have been 
developed, and suggested the Park committee and long-term planning are aware of this 

site location. 
 

 g. Mendel/Manning concerns – Clerk Riehle noted concerns received via email. CSO 
Caroon noted he has been in contact with Washington County regarding speed on 

Mendel Rd and he has requested their speed trailer. CSO Caroon noted he responded to 
the resident regarding Manning Ave and the jake braking concern. Since it is a County 

Road, the resident was referred to the County who could place signage. CSO Caroon 

indicated that the Mayfield Ave issue has quieted down.  
 

5. PLANNER – Graduate Planner CJ Sycks was present.  
• Washington County Planning Advisory Commission (PAC)- Public Hearing details on 

AOP. Graduate Planner Sycks noted that she and Planner Monson were notified of 
the public hearing scheduled for Tuesday, August 27, 2024, at 5pm at the 

Washington County Government Center. The materials for the hearing have not 
yet been posted. Supervisor Robbins-Fenger noted the updated letter indicated 

the location and that the PAC will accept comments or concerns prior to the 
meeting to be shared with commissioners at the meeting. Supervisor Robbins-

Fenger also noted that he could not locate the memo that was previously sent to 
the County for their consideration of adopting conditions onto the Conditional Use 

Permit (CUP). 
o Prohibiting the processing and storage of street sweepings in accordance 

with Town Ordinances #188 and #200. 

o Groundwater monitoring wells shall be tested bi-annually and reviewed by 
the County yearly. 



Stillwater Town Board Mtg. – 082224   Page 3 

o Soil loads shall be laboratory/analytical tested and “sniff tested and 
reviewed by the County yearly. 

 
Supervisor Robbins-Fenger will plan to attend the meeting. He will contact 

Supervisor Untiedt as well, there will not be a quorum present at the meeting. 
 

Clerk Riehle will follow up with County representatives to make sure the memo is 
in the packet for their Public Hearing.  

 
Supervisor Robbins-Fenger will collaborate with our Planners to be sure the 

Township has relayed our requests clearly to Washington County.  
 

6. COMMUNITY SERVICE DEPARTMENT – CSO Mark Caroon was present. He reported on 
the July public safety report. 

•  Total monthly calls for July - 87.  

•  Total number of burn permits – 3. 
•  No dogs were impounded. There was a complaint of a lost dog, but the dog was 

found and returned to the owner during the same day. 
•  Total traffic related complaints/citations/warnings – 31. 

•  Direct patrol by Washington County on Penfield/Stonebridge at 4-way stop. 
•  Special Use Permits – 3 for September. Permittee is to send out notifications to 

neighbors prior to the event. 
o Yoga Festival - 118th/Otchipwe. 

o Private Wedding – September 7 – 95th St N 
o Private Wedding – September 24 – Perkins Ave 

• Stolen signs – Orwell Ave. The National Park Service (NPS) Representative, Lisa 
Yaeger, may be contacted for replacement, as it is a “specialty sign.” Jeff at Miller 

will be contacted as well for replacement of the “no parking beyond this point” 
sign. 

• Tree clean up – CSO Caroon noted clean up on Mendel where visibility was the 

issue, and that clean up remains on Newgate Ave. 
•  Door-to-Door Sales – CSO Caroon located the pest control salespersons and noted 

the boundary was out of the City of Stillwater (COS) boundary where they did 
have a COS permit. They were told to stop soliciting in the Township. 

 
(PEOPLE PORTION) – No comment for the public. 

 
7. TREASURER – Treasurer Olson was present to give a report. 

 
a. Report given by Treasurer Olson. At the end of the month of July the township had 

$3,215,728.03 in cash and investments. The first half of the property taxes came 
in at the beginning of the month in the amount of $584,678.89 and the disaster 

reimbursement came in the amount of $87,058.13. In July, the township paid out 
for the capital improvement road project in the amount of $329,722.82. Pay 

request number 2 for this project is being recommended to be paid by the 

engineer in August. 
b. Claims and Checks #24524 through #24568 EFT 081424 ABC and EFT 082224 

ABCDE were approved for payment. 



Stillwater Town Board Mtg. – 082224   Page 4 

 
8. MAINTENANCE – Clerk Riehle reported that the help of Maintenance Manager Rick 

Jacobson, CSO Caroon and Assistant Park Manager Josh Riehle was necessary and 
contributed with the smooth success in helping set up and tear down the election 

equipment (booths, tables etc.) Their assistance was appreciated. 
 

9. PARK COMMITTEE - Park Manager Reich was absent. Deputy Clerk Jennifer Maes 
reported. The Park committee will meet again on September 9. They met on August 8 

and the Picnic was on August 11, and noted the following: 
• Picnic –  

o Ran out of chips and root beer but more was purchased.  
o Stayed under budget. 

o The cost of entertainment was equal to last year. 
o Food costs increased but less was purchased. 

o Thank You’s were sent out. Supervisors noted all the activities were well 

received. 
 

• Incident - Little Carnelian – Landbridge, our grant contractor accidentally removed 
some buckthorn on a neighboring property. The landowner was upset because it 

offered screening from the park. The Park Committee was asked to install “park 
property” signs and add replacement shrubbery. The Committee decided to not 

replace the shrubbery unless the grant funds allow, but they will put two signs at 
the property line. The homeowner was encouraged to install his own signs on his 

private property. 
 

• Trail Signs – Supervisor Geisen noted that a couple of “no motorized vehicles 
allowed” signs have been knocked down on the Curtiss Hills trail beginning at 

105th. It was possible when the mowing occurred, they got knocked over. Deputy 
Clerk Maes was asked to investigate this and have them reinstalled. 

 

• Trail Maintenance – Supervisor Geisen suggested the Park Committee review and 
use budgeted money for our trail maintenance to determine the need for new 

gravel/class 5 for maintenance purposes.  
 

• Basketball Hoops/Posts – Maintenance Manager Jacobson noted the basketball posts 
will need to be replaced in the future. The height is lower than standard because 

the crank got stuck and it broke. Supervisor Geisen asked Deputy Clerk Maes to 
have our Park Manager get quotes ready for the next meeting. 

 
10. PLANNING COMMISSION – Supervisor Geisen reported that the Commission met on 

July 23. He noted some of the discussion points the Commission had around Short-Term 
Rentals (STRs). During the STRs renewal, there will be some minor adjustments made 

to the process along with another letter being sent to neighbors by the STR Owner 
containing contact information. The Commission also discussed having a “General 

Complaint Form” on our website. A draft of the form and Ordinance changes around 

occupancy will be proposed and reviewed at the next Planning Commission meeting. 
 



Stillwater Town Board Mtg. – 082224   Page 5 

Graduate Planner Sycks noted that the Commission discussed Accessory Dwelling Units 
(ADUs). The Commission asked the Planning Staff to come back with a comparison to 

what other communities do for further discussion at their next meeting. 
Clerk Riehle noted frequent questions and inquiries come in regarding generational 

living.  
 

11. COMMUNICATION COMMITTEE – The summer newsletter and recycling insert are on 
the website. The committee will meet on September 17. 

 
12. OLD BUSINESS –  

 Wiskow berm – Clerk Riehle noted she was in contact with the Washington County 
Permit Specialist, Jennifer Oehler. She noted that the culvert had been pulled and they 

were restoring the ditch there. Ms. Oehler did not have an update to the berm but noted 
that since it is out of the ROW there are no requirements set. The County required a 

deposit for the ditch work, and they may be still working on restoration. Ms. Oehler 

intended to follow up with their inspector to see if there were any other updates. 
Planner Monson noted to Clerk Riehle in an email, that there are already four dwellings 

within the same quarter-quarter section this parcel is located in, so any new lot would 
exceed the maximum density of 4 units per 40 acres set in the ‘AG’ zoning district. 

 
 Hwy 96 Corridor Study Update – Chair Sinclair noted upcoming timeline meetings 

and engagement. Clerk Riehle noted that there was a staff meeting on August 9 and 
another on August 15 with Washington County Planner, Madeline Dahlheimer. Clerk 

Riehle summarized the meetings, noting the concerns for the impact to Otto Berg Park 
with potential intersection improvements and the safety concern at Stonebridge Trail 

from truck traffic. 
 

There is a link on our Township website to the Washington County Highway 96 Corridor 
Study and Project Overview. 

  

13. NEW BUSINESS –   
 Donation from Heinrich Bantli – A Memorandum of Gift (donation) was accompanied 

by a project proposal to convert the triangular piece of property on the NW corner of 
Hwy 96/Norell Ave into a native prairie. Mr. Bantli expressed his frustration in planning 

and noted his gift of money would be for the sole purpose of installation and 
maintenance of the native prairie. Township Attorney, Jack Brooksbank noted the 

current Washington County Corridor Study with road improvements to that location and 
that the Township has the authority to accept conditional gifts but to do so, the Town 

Board must pass a resolution accepting the gift with conditions which are binding on the 
Township. Concerns and potential conflicts were discussed. Attorney Brooksbank noted 

that he could work with Mr. Bantli to amend the Memorandum of Gift to allow the 
Township to hold the money in reserve until road construction is finished. Additionally, 

Washington County stated in their memo, dated August 19, asking the township to 
consider delaying significant investments at this time and noted they will work with the 

township to identify a location where the prairie restoration could occur that aligns with 

the intent of the submitted proposal and the recommended intersection improvements.  
 



Stillwater Town Board Mtg. – 082224   Page 6 

Attorney Brooksbank will work with Mr. Bantli and will draft a Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) along with a Resolution to accept the gift. All necessary 

documents will be brought back to the Town Board at the next meeting on September 
12. Once the gift is accepted, it will be held in an interest-bearing designation. 

 
14.  CLERK –  

 Election– Supervisor Geisen noted that the Primary was lightly attended, and 
Precincts only saw a small percent turnout. Clerk Riehle noted that she is receiving 

feedback from election judges and church staff and will be beginning the General 
Election planning very soon. 

 
 Address changes – Clerk Riehle reported that she received an address assignment 

change/revision request from Washington County Survey Project Coordinator, Adam 
Earney. After consulting with our Building Inspector and Planner, it was determined that 

the landowner needed a demolition permit after the fact, but that everything else 

aligned and was approved. 
 

 Staff Evaluation Reviews – Supervisor Geisen noted that seven staff members need 
to be reviewed by the end of October. Supervisors called for a closed session of the staff 

performance reviews. The dates proposed are October 10 at 5:30pm (Clerks) and 
October 24 at 7:00pm (other Staff), allowing 30 minutes for each review. Clerk Riehle 

will schedule the reviews and will forward job descriptions to the Town Board. 
Supervisor Robbins-Fenger suggested updating job descriptions. 

 
M/S/P Geisen/Riehle moved to authorize the scheduled performance reviews in closed 

session on the dates as stated above. (4 ayes) 
 

 Table donation – Resident Joel Barvels was present. Mr. Barvels would like to make 
a table that matches the council table and then donate it to the township. Supervisor 

Geisen suggested having it made so that a person could sit and manage the computer 

during virtual meetings.  
 

 Virtual meeting management – Deputy Clerk Maes was asked to begin managing 
the computer during Town Board meetings starting in September. 

 
Clerk Riehle noted that our contract with Zoom renews December 1, 2024. Ms. Riehle 

will investigate Microsoft Teams as an alternative and will consult Celia Wirth for further 
assistance in setting this up and learning how to use it. 

  
 Safety Checks - Clerk Riehle reported that MN Dept of Health (MDH) comes every 3 

years and recently visited on August 12 for inspection and water sampling. She is 
awaiting the report. In addition, other yearly safety checks will be scheduled with 

Nardini and the Fire Dept. 
 

 2025 Calendar – Clerk Riehle intends to have a 2025 Calendar ready for review by 

the November meeting. 
 



Stillwater Town Board Mtg. – 082224   Page 7 

 Joint Workshop – Clerk Riehle reported that the Baytown Township Clerk, Nancy 
Healey was looking to organize a joint meeting with other local townships. Once a date 

and time is confirmed, Clerk Riehle will post. 
 

15. ADJORNMENT – M/S/P Geisen/Riehle moved to adjourn the meeting. The meeting 
was adjourned at 9:06 p.m. (4 ayes) 

 
The next Town Board meeting is scheduled for Thursday, September 12, 2024, at 

7:00PM. 
 

Clerk______________________________________ 
 

 
Chairperson_________________________________ 

  

 
Approved___________________________________ 


